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MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

December 13, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 
 

This meeting will be held in person at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California, 92708 (Conference 
Room 101).  As a convenience for the public, the meeting may also be accessed by Zoom Webinar and will be available 

by either computer or telephone audio as indicated below.  Because this is an in-person meeting and the Zoom component 
is not required, but rather is being offered as a convenience, if there are any technical issues during the meeting, this 

meeting will continue and will not be suspended. 
Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 
 
    Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

 (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 
    Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 
 
A&F Committee:     Staff:  H. De La Torre, C. Harris, 
Director Dick, Chair     H. Chumpitazi, M. Baum-Haley,  
Director Thomas     K. Davanaugh 
Director Crane 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Yoo Schneider 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
1. TREASURER'S REPORT 

a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report – November 2023 
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of December 2023 
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of November 2023 
d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of November 2023 
e. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – October 2023 
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f. OPEB and Pension Trust Fund statement 
 
2. FINANCIAL REPORT 

a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the Period 
Ending October 31, 2023 

b. FY 2022-23 Audit Report and Presentation regarding Audit Report 
 
ACTION ITEM 
 
3. AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT WITH LA DESIGN STUDIO FOR WEBSITE 

UPDATES  
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
4. FY 2024-25 BUDGET 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS – (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
5. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 

a. Administration 
b. Finance and Information Technology 

 
6. MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA AND WATER SUPPLY INFORMATION 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
7. REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL 

MATTERS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 
includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 
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MUNICIPAL WATER DIST OF ORANGE COUNTY

PARS Post-Employment Benefits Trust 10/1/2023 to 10/31/2023

Hilary Chumpitazi

Accounting Manager

Municipal Water Dist of Orange County

18700 Ward Street

Fountain Valley, CA 92708

Account Summary

Source 10/1/2023 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 10/31/2023

OPEB 1001 $2,494,931.39 $0.00 -$59,226.35 $1,239.29 $0.00 $0.00 $2,434,465.75

PENSION 1002 $1,284,763.22 $0.00 -$30,498.56 $638.16 $0.00 $0.00 $1,253,626.50

Totals $3,779,694.61 $0.00 -$89,724.91 $1,877.45 $0.00 $0.00 $3,688,092.25

Investment Selection
Source

OPEB

PENSION

Investment Objective
Source

OPEB

PENSION

Investment Return

Source 1-Month 3-Months 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years 10-Years

OPEB -2.37% -7.19% 3.69% 1.57% 4.13% 4.55% 10/26/2011

PENSION -2.37% -7.15% 3.73% 1.58% 4.13% - 7/31/2018

Information as provided by US Bank, Trustee for PARS;  Not FDIC Insured;  No Bank Guarantee;  May Lose Value

Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660     800.540.6369     Fax 949.250.1250     www.pars.org

Balance as of

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a 

significant portion of total return, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity 

and fixed income investments.

Moderate HighMark PLUS

Plan's Inception Date

Account balances are inclusive of Trust Administration, Trustee and Investment Management fees

Annualized Return

Investment Return:  Annualized rate of return is the return on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return.

Past performance does not guarantee future results.  Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reduce returns.  Information is deemed reliable but may be subject to change.

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a 

significant portion of total return, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity 

and fixed income investments.

Account Report for the Period

Balance as of 

Moderate HighMark PLUS
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MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND  

BUDGET COMPARATIVE 

JULY 1, 2023 THRU OCTOBER 31, 2023 
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Municipal Water District of Orange County
Combined Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2023

Amount
ASSETS

Cash in Bank 173,493.10

Investments 19,954,463.23

Accounts Receivable 23,903,610.65

Accounts Receivable - Other 633,440.29

Accrued Interest Receivable 120,120.75

Prepaids/Deposits 485,910.20

Leasehold Improvements 7,011,190.45

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 913,949.69

Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (4,084,914.95)

TOTAL ASSETS 49,111,263.41

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 24,580,179.01

Accrued Salaries and Benefits Payable 756,799.64

Other Liabilities 468,276.94

Unearned Revenue 1,253,622.54

TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,058,878.13

FUND BALANCES

Restricted Fund Balances

WEROC Reserve 317,999.82

Pension 115 Trust 1,120,664.29
Total Restricted Fund Balances 1,438,664.11

Unrestricted Fund Balances

Designated Reserves

General Operations 3,819,350.00

Election Expense 482,587.00

OPEB 297,147.00
Total Designated Reserves 4,599,084.00

General Fund 7,948,699.52
General Fund Capital 86,023.20

Total Unrestricted Fund Balances 12,633,806.72

Excess Revenue over Expenditure

Operating Fund 7,990,805.67

Other Funds (10,891.22)

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 22,052,385.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 49,111,263.41
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Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

July  1, 2023 thru October 31, 2023
General Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Annual Budget % Used Encumbrance
Budget

Remaining

REVENUES

Retail Connection Charge 0.00 9,206,255.25 9,206,255.00 100.00% 0.00 (0.25)
Ground Water Customer Charge 0.00 383,697.00 383,697.00 100.00% 0.00 0.00

Water Rate Revenues 0.00 9,589,952.25 9,589,952.00 100.00% 0.00 (0.25)

Interest Revenue 82,703.61 281,801.54 319,410.00 88.23% 0.00 37,608.46

Subtotal 82,703.61 9,871,753.79 9,909,362.00 99.62% 0.00 37,608.21

Choice Programs 1,949.04 1,404,717.47 1,591,032.00 88.29% 0.00 186,314.53
MWD Revenue - Shared Services 51,042.00 117,631.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 (117,631.00)
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 1,114.61 3,000.00 37.15% 0.00 1,885.39
Revenue - Other 128.95 783.32 0.00 0.00% 0.00 (783.32)
School Contracts 7,023.56 18,945.62 435,950.00 4.35% 0.00 417,004.38
Delinquent Payment Penalty 0.00 1.05 0.00 0.00% 0.00 (1.05)
Transfer-In from Reserve 0.00 0.00 404,537.00 0.00% 0.00 404,537.00

Subtotal 60,143.55 1,543,193.07 2,434,519.00 63.39% 0.00 891,325.93

TOTAL REVENUES 142,847.16 11,414,946.86 12,343,881.00 92.47% 0.00 928,934.14
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Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

July  1, 2023 thru October 31, 2023
General Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Annual Budget % Used Encumbrance
Budget

Remaining

EXPENSES

Salaries & Wages 409,135.44 1,600,686.95 5,135,356.00 31.17% 0.00 3,534,669.05
Salaries & Wages - Grant Recovery 0.00 0.00 (30,000.00) 0.00% 0.00 (30,000.00)
Director's Compensation 25,539.54 94,627.27 275,041.00 34.40% 0.00 180,413.73
MWD Representation 8,513.18 40,928.75 117,875.00 34.72% 0.00 76,946.25
Employee Benefits 121,940.67 477,663.21 1,507,382.00 31.69% 0.00 1,029,718.79
CalPers Unfunded Liability Contribution 0.00 0.00 207,000.00 0.00% 0.00 207,000.00
Director's Benefits 8,780.01 35,055.42 104,447.00 33.56% 0.00 69,391.58
Health Insurance for Retirees 3,566.33 22,001.02 84,847.00 25.93% 0.00 62,845.98
Training Expense 943.99 1,498.99 36,000.00 4.16% 0.00 34,501.01
Tuition Reimbursement 1,561.00 1,561.00 5,000.00 31.22% 0.00 3,439.00
Temporary Help Expense 0.00 10,503.24 5,000.00 210.06% 0.00 (5,503.24)

Personnel Expenses 579,980.16 2,284,525.85 7,447,948.00 30.67% 0.00 5,163,422.15

Engineering Expense 1,100.00 11,636.50 307,000.00 3.79% 79,403.00 215,960.50
Legal Expense 19,614.43 76,962.40 241,000.00 31.93% 164,037.60 0.00
Audit Expense 15,000.00 15,000.00 36,500.00 41.10% 16,500.00 5,000.00
Professional Services 122,828.95 421,264.76 1,798,425.00 23.42% 1,103,665.08 273,495.16

Professional Fees 158,543.38 524,863.66 2,382,925.00 22.03% 1,363,605.68 494,455.66

Conference - Staff 890.00 8,530.00 49,832.00 17.12% 0.00 41,302.00
Conference - Directors 865.00 4,430.00 23,065.00 19.21% 0.00 18,635.00
Travel & Accom. - Staff 2,628.10 9,856.44 102,200.00 9.64% 0.00 92,343.56
Travel & Accom. - Directors 242.70 5,371.96 42,400.00 12.67% 0.00 37,028.04

Travel & Conference 4,625.80 28,188.40 217,497.00 12.96% 0.00 189,308.60

Membership/Sponsorship 39,445.00 144,428.58 167,366.00 86.30% 0.00 22,937.42
CDR Support 0.00 15,608.28 62,433.00 25.00% 46,824.86 (0.14)

Dues & Memberships 39,445.00 160,036.86 229,799.00 69.64% 46,824.86 22,937.28

Business Expense 452.56 1,318.73 2,000.00 65.94% 0.00 681.27
Office Maintenance 15,150.96 49,663.39 175,860.00 28.24% 108,796.61 17,400.00
Building Repair & Maintenance 506.36 6,063.24 25,200.00 24.06% 6,480.76 12,656.00
Storage Rental & Equipment Lease 65.14 298.19 1,800.00 16.57% 501.81 1,000.00
Office Supplies 1,937.32 5,675.51 27,000.00 21.02% 2,243.28 19,081.21
Supplies - Water Loss Control 56.93 1,585.33 4,000.00 39.63% 0.00 2,414.67
Postage/Mail Delivery 554.37 2,246.91 11,675.00 19.25% 1,261.92 8,166.17
Subscriptions & Books 119.99 399.98 1,000.00 40.00% 0.00 600.02
Reproduction Expense 3,627.37 6,832.95 93,000.00 7.35% 2,951.62 83,215.43
Maintenance - Computers 235.98 2,661.32 5,000.00 53.23% 0.00 2,338.68
Software Purchase 6,606.87 36,525.18 106,498.00 34.30% 1,749.30 68,223.52
Software Support 5,873.90 28,133.48 50,185.00 56.06% 0.00 22,051.52
Computers and Equipment 568.21 9,261.21 43,000.00 21.54% 0.00 33,738.79
Maintenance Expense 0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00% 0.00 6,000.00
Automotive Expense 1,278.68 4,111.15 9,400.00 43.74% 0.00 5,288.85
Vehicle Expense 1,439.39 6,833.16 12,000.00 56.94% 0.00 5,166.84
Toll Road Charges 45.44 132.74 975.00 13.61% 0.00 842.26
Insurance Expense 15,862.90 65,519.45 182,976.00 35.81% 0.00 117,456.55
Utilities - Telephone 4,536.57 14,196.27 46,438.00 30.57% 1,026.27 31,215.46
Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 2,600.00 0.00% 0.00 2,600.00
Miscellaneous Expense 6,934.59 34,276.04 154,200.00 22.23% 5,839.00 114,084.96
MWDOC's Contrb. to WEROC 24,442.25 97,769.00 293,307.00 33.33% 0.00 195,538.00
Depreciation Expense 9,278.00 37,112.32 0.00 0.00% 0.00 (37,112.32)

Other Expenses 99,573.78 410,615.55 1,254,114.00 32.74% 130,850.57 712,647.88

Election Expense 0.00 0.00 563,020.00 0.00% 0.00 563,020.00
Capital Aquisition 0.00 1,510.56 25,892.00 5.83% 0.00 24,381.44
Building Expense 4,803.03 14,400.31 222,686.00 6.47% 22,082.21 186,203.48

TOTAL EXPENSES 886,971.15 3,424,141.19 12,343,881.00 27.74% 1,563,363.32 7,356,376.49

NET INCOME (LOSS) (744,123.99) 7,990,805.67 0.00 0.00% (1,563,363.32) (6,427,442.35)
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Municipal Water District of Orange County
Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report

Water Fund
July  1, 2023 thru October 31, 2023

Month to Date Year to Date Annual Budget % Used
Budget

Remaining

WATER REVENUES

Water Sales 9,953,833.00 45,961,189.70 181,024,108.00 25.39% 135,062,918.30
Readiness to Serve Charge 1,138,233.52 4,567,945.93 13,768,707.00 33.18% 9,200,761.07
Capacity Charge CCF 293,620.00 1,174,480.00 4,816,710.00 24.38% 3,642,230.00
SCP/SAC Pipeline Surcharge 28,513.42 124,507.33 358,000.00 34.78% 233,492.67

TOTAL WATER REVENUES 11,414,199.94 51,828,122.96 199,967,525.00 25.92% 148,139,402.04

WATER PURCHASES

Water Sales 9,953,833.00 45,961,189.70 181,024,108.00 25.39% 135,062,918.30
Readiness to Serve Charge 1,138,233.52 4,567,945.93 13,768,707.00 33.18% 9,200,761.07
Capacity Charge CCF 293,620.00 1,174,480.00 4,816,710.00 24.38% 3,642,230.00
SCP/SAC Pipeline Surcharge 28,513.42 124,507.33 358,000.00 34.78% 233,492.67

TOTAL WATER PURCHASES 11,414,199.94 51,828,122.96 199,967,525.00 25.92% 148,139,402.04

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURE

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
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Municipal Water District of Orange County

July  1, 2023 thru October 31, 2023

Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report
Water Use Efficiency

Year to Date Actual Annual Budget % Used

Spray To Drip Conversion(3423)
Revenues 220,555.29 613,600.00 35.94%
Expenses 260,579.18 613,600.00 42.47%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (40,023.89) 0.00

Member Agency Administered Pass-Thru(3425)
Revenues 0.00 338,000.00 0.00%
Expenses 0.00 338,000.00 0.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

ULFT Rebate Program(3410)
Revenues 520.00 1,000.00 52.00%
Expenses 740.00 1,000.00 74.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (220.00) 0.00

HECW Rebate Program(3411)
Revenues 26,146.83 40,000.00 65.37%
Expenses 20,785.00 40,000.00 51.96%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 5,361.83 0.00

CII Rebate Program(3416)
Revenues 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
Expenses 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

Turf Removal Program(3418)
Revenues 1,751,194.07 11,298,000.00 15.50%
Expenses 1,774,367.68 11,298,000.00 15.71%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (23,173.61) 0.00

Comprehensive Landscape (CLWUE)(3427)
Revenues 63,991.73 152,400.00 41.99%
Expenses 77,581.86 152,400.00 50.91%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (13,590.13) 0.00

Recycled Water Program(3433)
Revenues 0.00 50,000.00 0.00%
Expenses 37,228.75 50,000.00 74.46%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (37,228.75) 0.00

WSIP - Industrial Program(3432)
Revenues 0.00 53,720.00 0.00%
Expenses 0.00 53,720.00 0.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

Land Design Program(3431)
Revenues 45,125.00 300,000.00 15.04%
Expenses 56,985.00 300,000.00 19.00%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (11,860.00) 0.00

Pressure Regulation Program(3435)
Revenues 8,951.02 15,000.00 59.67%
Expenses 8,951.02 15,000.00 59.67%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 0.00 0.00

Dedicated Irrigation Meters Measurement Project
(DIMM)(3439)
Revenues 41,860.00 743,000.00 5.63%
Expenses 173,339.43 743,000.00 23.33%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (131,479.43) 0.00
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Municipal Water District of Orange County

July  1, 2023 thru October 31, 2023

Revenues and Expenditures Budget Comparative Report
Water Use Efficiency

Year to Date Actual Annual Budget % Used

Total WUE Projects
Revenues 2,158,343.94 13,605,720.00 15.86%
Expenses 2,410,557.92 13,605,720.00 17.72%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures (252,213.98) 0.00

WEROC
Revenues 387,569.00 586,614.00 66.07%
Expenses 168,788.42 586,614.00 28.77%

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 218,780.58 0.00
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Board of Directors 
Fountain Valley, California 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions  

We have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Water District of Orange County 
(the District), as of and for the year June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the District as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes 
in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
District’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial 
statements are issued. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain 
internal control–related matters that we identified during the audit.  

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan: Schedule of 
Changes, Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan: Schedule of OPEB Contributions, Cost Sharing 
Retirement Plan: Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, 
and Cost Sharing Retirement Plan: Schedule of Contributions be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
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on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the financial statements of the Municipal Water District of Orange 
County for the year ended June 30, 2022, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on 
those audited financial statements in our report dated November 2, 2022. In our opinion, the 
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2023, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which 
it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 7, 2023 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Irvine, California  
December 7, 2023 

3 Page 36 of 104



MANAGEMENT’SMANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION

AND ANALYSISAND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)(Unaudited)

Page 37 of 104



MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(UNAUDITED) 
JUNE 30, 2023 

4 

The following is a brief discussion of the Municipal Water District of Orange County’s (District) activities 
and financial performance for the year ended June 30, 2023.  Please read it in conjunction with the 
District’s basic financial statements and accompanying notes which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The District’s revenues were $174.7 million in FY 2022-23, compared to $214.9 million in the
prior fiscal year, a 18.7% decrease.

 The District’s expenses were $174.1 million in FY 2022-23, compared to $213.6 million in the
prior fiscal year, a 18.5% decrease.

 The District’s assets at June 30, 2023 were $36.7 million, a 33.9% decrease compared to
total assets of $55.6 million at June 30, 2022.

 The District’s liabilities at June 30, 2023 were $25.7 million, a 40.2% decrease compared to
total liabilities of $43.0 million at June 30, 2022.

 The District’s net position at June 30, 2023 was $12.9 million, a 4.7% increase compared to
net position of $12.3 million at June 30, 2022.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The District’s financial statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP), offer key, high-level financial information about the District activities during the 
reporting period.  The financial statements of the District consist of three interrelated statements 
designed to provide the reader with relevant information on the District’s financial condition and 
operating results.  These statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the 
District’s activities utilizing the full accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s assets and deferred outflows of resources, 
less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference being reported as Net Position. 
It also provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District, 
and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  

All the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  This statement measures the District’s operations over the 
past year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all its 
projected costs through its rates and other service related charges. 

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which presents information 
about the District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period classified as cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-capital 
financing, and capital and related financing activities.  This statement also provides comparative 
information on the sources and uses of the District’s cash during the reporting period. 
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5 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 

One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is: “Is the District, as a whole, 
financially better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the 
District’s activities in a way that will help answer this question.  These two statements report the net 
position of the District and changes in them.  You can think of the District’s net position (the difference 
between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources) 
as one way to measure financial health or financial position.  Over time, increases or decreases in the 
District’s Net Position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
However, you will need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes in economic 
conditions, population growth, changes in rates and charges and new or changed government 
legislation or accounting standards. 

Page 39 of 104
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Net position is the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities plus 
deferred inflows of resources, and may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position. The following is a summary of the District’s Statement of Net Position. 

 Total Assets decreased by $18.9 million due to a decrease in Accounts Receivable for June Water
Sales, an increase in conservation rebates which create an internal borrowing, and an increase in
the net OPEB asset.

 Total Liabilities decreased by $17.3 million primarily due to lower Water Sales in June for
unrestricted offset by an increase in net pension liability for noncurrent liabilities.

 Total Net Position had a small increase due to a reduction in restricted activities and deferred
inflows caused from pension liabilities increasing.

TABLE 1
Condensed Statements of Net Positions

(In thousands of dollars)
June 30:

FY 2023 FY 2022 Variance

Total
Percent
Change

Current Restricted Assets 3,656$       3,303$       353$          10.7%        
Current Unrestricted Assets 28,980       48,030       (19,050)      (39.7%)       
Capital Assets 3,877         4,141         (264) (6.4%) 
Other Assets 203            104            99 95.2%        

Total Assets 36,716       55,578       (18,862)      (33.9%)       

Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,354         1,345         1,009         75.0%        

Current Liabilities Payable from
 Restricted Assets 1,103         1,351         (248) (18.4%) 

Current Liabilities Payable from
 Unrestricted Liabilities 21,001       40,556       (19,555)      (48.2%) 

Noncurrent Unrestricted Liabilities 3,613         1,098         2,515         229.1%

Total Liabilities 25,717       43,005       (17,288)      (40.2%)       

Deferred Inflows of Resources 433            1,579         (1,146)        (72.6%)       

Net Position:

Investment in Capital Assets 3,877         4,141         (264) (6.4%) 
Restricted for Trustee Activities 2,553         1,952         601            30.8%        
Unrestricted 6,490         6,246         244            3.9%          

Total Net Position 12,920$      12,339$      581$          4.7%          
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

While the Statement of Net Position shows the financial position at year-end, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provides information as to the results of operations 
of the District during the year. The District reported an increase in net position of $581 thousand for 
the year ended June 30, 2023, as compared to $1.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The 
following is a summary of the change in the District’s net position. 

The sources of change in net position are the following: 

 Water Sales Revenues and Operating Expenses are lower due to lower water sales for the
year.

 Special Projects Revenue and Expense are higher due to increased conservation and Federal
Grant activity in conservation rebates.

 Non-operating Revenues are higher due to an increase in interest revenue.

 Net position increased mainly due to the increase in Non-operating Revenues.

FY 2023 FY 2022 Variance

Total
Percent
Change

Water Sales 165,457$        210,432$        (44,975)$      (21.4%)      
Special Project Revenues 8,767    4,663           4,104     88.0%       
Non-operating Revenues/(Expenses) 468       (166) 634 (381.9%)    

Total Revenues 174,692          214,929        (40,237)  (18.7%)      

Operating Expenses 165,016          208,609        (43,593)  (20.9%)      
Special Projects Expenses 8,767    4,662           4,105     88.1%       
Depreciation Expense 328       281    47          16.7%       

Total Expenses 174,111          213,552        (39,441)  (18.5%)      

Change in Net Position 581       1,377           (796) (57.8%)

Beginning Net Position 12,339  10,962         1,377     12.6%

Ending Net Position 12,920$          12,339$          581$           4.7%         

TABLE 2
Condensed Statements of Revenues

(In thousands of dollars)
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
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CAPITAL ASSETS 

The following is a summary of the District’s capital assets at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. 

The District’s completed office remodel and retrofit project has had a full year of depreciation. 
Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in Notes 1 and 4 of the notes to the 
financial statements. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The District had no debt outstanding as of June 30, 2023.  The District does not plan to issue new 
debt in the year ending June 30, 2024. 

FY 2023 FY 2022 Variance

Total
Percent
Change

Leasehold Improvements 7,011$       7,001$       10$        0.1%
Furniture, Equipment & Computer Equipment 914           885     29          3.3%

Subtotal 7,925        7,886 39          0.5%

Less Accumulated Depreciation (4,048)       (3,745)       (303) 8.1%

Net Capital Assets 3,877$       4,141$       (264)$     (6.4%)        

Capital Assets
(In thousands of dollars)

TABLE 3
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The District is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of seven elected members.  The Board 
adopts an annual appropriated budget prior to the start of the fiscal year.  The Budget may be revised 
by Board action during the fiscal year.  All amendments to the budget, or transfers of operating budget 
appropriations to or from reserve accounts, require Board notification. The General Manager is 
authorized to transfer budget amounts within programs and cost centers. The legal level of budgetary 
control is at the total fund level. An actual vs. budget comparison schedule for FY 2022-23 is presented 
in Table 4 to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budget. 

The variances on the budget to actual are as follows: 

 Revenues from Operations were $20.1 million less than budget due to actual water sales being
lower than expected.

 Non-Operating Revenues are higher due to an increase in interest income.

 Expenses from Cost of Water purchased were $20.1 million lower than budget due to actual
water sales being lower than expected.

Actual Budget Variance

Total
Percent
Change

Revenues:
From Operations 174,224$        194,308$        (20,084)$   (10.3%)       
Non-operating Revenues 468 154 314          203.9%      

Total Revenues 174,692          194,462         (19,770)     (10.2%)       

Expenses:
From Operations

Cost of Water 154,367          174,477         20,110      11.5%        
Other Operating 19,416           20,437           1,021        5.0%          
Depreciation 328 323 (5) (1.5%) 

Total Expenses 174,111          195,237         21,126      10.8%        

Change In Net Assets 581$              (775)$             1,356$      (175.0%)      

TABLE 4
FY 2023 Actual vs Budget
(In thousands of dollars)
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 

The District’s Board of Directors and management considered many factors during the preparation 
and approval of the annual budget for FY 2023-24.  The budgeted operating expenses total $226.2 
million and operating revenues total $225.8 million. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is intended to provide the Board of Directors, customers, taxpayers, creditors, and 
other interested parties with a general overview of the District’s financial operations and condition as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the funds 
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, you may contact the 
Municipal Water District of Orange County, Finance Dept., at 18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, CA 
92708, (714) 963-3058. Or visit our website at www.mwdoc.com.  
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2023 2022
ASSETS

Current Assets:

Restricted Assets (Note 3):
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 365,110$              946,679$           
Investments (Note 2) 1,120,665             -$  
Accounts Receivable Other 2,169,947             2,355,276 
Accrued Interest Receivable 149  978 

Total Restricted Assets 3,655,871             3,302,933          

Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 6,740,899             7,291,393          
Investments (Note 2) 2,875,886             2,962,367          
Accounts Receivable:

Water Sales 18,599,500           37,502,695        
Other 458,696 85,033               

Accrued Interest Receivable 135,419 47,085               
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 169,843 141,139             

Total Unrestricted Assets 28,980,243           48,029,712        

Total Current Assets 32,636,114           51,332,645        

Noncurrent Assets:

Unrestricted Assets:
Capital Assets, Net (Note 4) 3,877,338             4,141,177          
Net Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Asset (Note 8) 202,948 104,284             

Total Noncurrent Assets 4,080,286             4,245,461          

TOTAL ASSETS 36,716,400           55,578,106        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Amount Related to Pensions (Note 7) 2,150,394             1,008,822          
Deferred Amount Related to OPEB (Note 8) 203,488 336,022             

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,353,882             1,344,844          

(with comparative data as of June 30, 2022)
June 30, 2023

Statement of Net Position
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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(with comparative data as of June 30, 2022)

2023 2022
LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities:

Payable from Restricted Assets
Accrued Liabilities 48,412$  275,981$           
Advances from Participants 1,054,844             1,074,951          

Total Payable from Restricted Assets 1,103,256             1,350,932          

Unrestricted Liabilities:
Accounts Payable, Metropolitan Water 
 District of Southern California 18,900,555           38,268,338        
Accrued Liabilities 2,100,680             2,288,018          

Total Unrestricted Liabilities 21,001,235           40,556,356        

Total Current Liabilities 22,104,491           41,907,288        

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Unrestricted Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability (Note 7) 3,612,624             1,097,925          

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,612,624             1,097,925          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,717,115           43,005,213        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount Related to Pensions (Note 7) 274,992 1,195,031          
Deferred Amount Related to OPEB (Note 8) 158,066 383,875             

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 433,058 1,578,906          

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,877,338             4,141,177          
Restricted 2,552,615             1,952,001          
Unrestricted 6,490,156             6,245,653          

TOTAL NET POSITION 12,920,109$         12,338,831$      

June 30, 2023
Statement of Net Position (Continued)

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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(with comparative data as of June 30, 2022)

2023 2022
Operating Revenues:

Water Sales 165,457,192$       210,432,332$    

Special Projects Revenue 7,058,040             2,796,851          

Federal Grant Revenue 801,847 702,714             

State Grant Revenue 907,018 1,162,824          

Total Operating Revenues 174,224,097         215,094,721      

Operating Expenses:

Cost of Water Sold 154,366,951         200,130,346      

Salaries and Employee Benefits 6,524,046             5,275,533          

General and Administrative 4,124,773             3,203,110          

Special Project Expenses 8,766,905             4,662,389          

Depreciation 327,888 281,210             

Total Operating Expenses 174,110,563         213,552,588      

Operating Income 113,534 1,542,133          

Nonoperating Revenues:

Investment Income/(Loss) 452,095 (174,503)            

Other Income 15,649 8,784 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 467,744 (165,719)            

Change in Net Position 581,278 1,376,414          

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,338,831           10,962,417        

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 12,920,109$         12,338,831$      

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023 2022
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from member agencies-water deliveries 184,360,387$          206,595,295$    
Cash (payments) to Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (173,734,734)           (196,152,292)     
Cash (payments) for salaries and employee benefits (6,262,897) (6,424,321)         
Cash (payments) for general and administrative expenses (4,714,478) (5,076,491)         
Cash received from special projects 8,724,665 3,255,043          
Cash (payments) for special projects (8,787,012) (3,999,480)         
Other income 15,649 8,784 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (398,420) (1,793,462)         

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activity:
Acquisition of capital assets (64,049) (1,060,186)         

Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activity (64,049) (1,060,186)         

Cash Flows from Investment Activities:

Investment income 452,095 80,136 
Investments matured/(purchased) (1,024) (79,400)              

Cash Provided (Used) by Investment Activities 451,071 736 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (11,398) (2,852,912)         
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,238,072 11,090,984        

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 8,226,674$              8,238,072$        

Financial Statement Presentation: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Restricted) 1,485,775$              946,679$           
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Unrestricted) 6,740,899 7,291,393          

Totals 8,226,674$              8,238,072$        

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
(with comparative data for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023 2022
Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) 113,534$  1,542,133$        

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities:

Depreciation 327,888 281,210             
Other Income 15,649 8,784 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable - Water Sales 18,903,195              (3,837,037)         
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable - Other (373,663) 145,793             
(Increase) in Deposits and Prepaid Expenses (28,704) 51,914 
(Increase) in OPEB asset (98,664) (15,088)              
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable - Special Projects 185,329 (1,242,874)         
(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Outflows - Pension/OPEB Related (1,009,038) (447,065)            
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued and Other Liabilities (187,338) (2,071,088)         
Increase/(Decrease) in Restricted Accrued Liabilities (227,569) (164,472)            
Increase/(Decrease) in Advances from Participants (20,107) 662,909             
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable to 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (19,367,783)             3,978,054          
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Pension and OPEB Liability 2,514,699 (1,746,908)         
Increase in Deferred Inflows - Pension/OPEB Related (1,145,848) 1,060,273          

Total Adjustments (511,954) (3,335,595)         

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (398,420)$  (1,793,462)$       

Noncash investing activity:
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments* (54,820)$  (318,469)$          

Total noncash investing activity (54,820)$  (318,469)$          

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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16 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Municipal Water District of Orange County (the District) was formed as a municipal water district
on January 11, 1951 under the Municipal Water District Act of 1911.  The District is a wholesale water
supplier and resource planning agency that serves all of Orange County through 27 cities and water
agencies (except the Cities of Anaheim, Fullerton, and Santa Ana which are independent member
agencies of Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan).  As a public agency member
of Metropolitan, the District purchases imported water from Metropolitan and provides water to the
District’s 27 member agencies, which provide retail or wholesale water services to over 2.35 million
residents within the District’s service area of approximately 600 square miles.  The District’s primary
sources of water from Metropolitan are the California State Water Project (SWP) and the Colorado River
Aqueduct.

The District is an independent special district of the State of California governed by an elected seven-
member board. On January 2001, the District merged with the Coastal Municipal Water District (Coastal)
under the recommendation of the Local Agency Formation Commission of Orange County (LAFCO) as
part of an effort to streamline local government. The consolidation of the two agencies allows the new
district to more efficiently provide wholesale water services for the benefit of residents living throughout the
service area.

The District’s reporting entity includes the accounts of the District and the Municipal Water District of
Orange County Water Facilities Corporation (WFC). Formed as a separate California nonprofit corporation
on April 20, 1978 to assist in the financing of the Allen-McColloch Pipeline (AMP) and the Flow
Augmentation Project (FAP), the WFC has no employees. The WFC is governed by a seven-member
board comprised of the District’s board members.  The WFC had no activity or balances for the year ended
June 30, 2023, and is kept active for potential future financing arrangements. WFC is a blended component
unit of the District and the District has operational responsibility for WFC.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements.  Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement
focus applied. The accompanying financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting.

Under the economic resources measurement focus, all assets, deferred inflows and outflows of resources,
and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with these activities are included on the Statement
of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.  Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows.

Basic Financial Statements

The District’s basic financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements.
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(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of Presentation

The District accounts for its activities as an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is a proprietary type fund
used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that  periodic  determination  of
revenues  earned,  expenses  incurred,  and/or  net  income  is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, and are
presented on an economic measurement focus reporting all economic resources and obligations as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Net Position

In the Statement of Net Position, net position is classified in the following categories:

 Net investment in capital assets – This amount consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets as applicable.

 Restricted net position – This amount consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities.
Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results
in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported or a
resource subject to constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

 Unrestricted net position – This amount is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of investment in
capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the District’s policy to use restricted 
resources first and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed. 

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 

The District’s primary purpose is to provide a dependable wholesale supply of imported water for its 27 
member agencies.  Accordingly, operating revenues such as water sales result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District, which is the purchase and resale of 
imported water to the District’s member agencies. 

Revenues from federal and state grants, reimbursements from participants and special projects, as  well 
as  special  project  expenses  are  defined  as  operating  revenues  and expenses, respectively. 
Nonoperating revenues consist of investment income and other miscellaneous income. 
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(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Water Sales and Cost of Water Sold

Historically, the District’s primary source of revenue has been from the resale of imported water to the
District’s 27 member agencies located in Orange County.   Based on Metropolitan’s cost of water,
each year Metropolitan’s Board of Directors approves water rates comprised of a capacity charge,
readiness to serve charge and a per acre-foot charge.  Metropolitan’s rates are based on cost- o f -
s e r v i c e  studies performed on a biennial basis.   Water rates are not subject to regulation by the
California Public Utilities Commission or by any other local, state, or federal agency. Revenue from sales
of water is recognized on an accrual basis as water is delivered.

The District’s revenue is from a per retail me t e r  connection charge and a groundwater customer charge.
Choice services are charged directly to the agencies as a “fee for service” on a subscription basis.  The
member agencies also pay for the resale of imported water in addition to the other charges noted.

Investments

Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on
the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

The District’s investment policy and delegation of investment authority is reviewed and approved each
year by the Board of Directors.   The investment policy authorizes the Treasurer to invest, reinvest, sell
or exchange permitted fixed income securities in accordance with the California Government Code.
Investment income from restricted assets remains restricted.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and short-term, highly liquid investments (i.e., Local Agency
Investment Fund and Orange County Investment Pool) which are readily convertible to cash and
mature within ninety (90) days of original purchase.

Accounts Receivable

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations.  Management believes all
accounts receivable are collectible. In the event any accounts receivables are determined they are
uncollectible, an allowance is recorded.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and
a useful life greater than one (1) year.   Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective accounts and any gains or
losses are recognized.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful

Page 54 of 104



Municipal Water District of Orange County 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

19 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

life of the asset, which range from 3 to 10 years for furniture, fixtures, and equipment, and up to 30 years
for leasehold improvements.

Deposits and Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as Deposits and Prepaid Expenses in the basic financial statements.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The District reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB.  A deferred
outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the District that is applicable to a future reporting
period.  A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position by the district that is
applicable to a future period.  Refer to Note 7 and 8 for items identified as deferred inflows and outflows of
resources as of June 30, 2023.

Compensated Absences

As vacation leave is a vested employee benefit, the District is obligated to compensate employees for all
earned but unused vacation days. Employee vacation days are accrued each pay period and reported as
accrued liabilities. Depending on the length of employment, employees earn a minimum of 10 up to
a maximum of 21 vacation days per year. Accumulated vacation days may not exceed 2 times the number
of days earned per year without prior approval of the General Manager. Sick leave time is a non-vested
employee benefit (i.e., accumulated sick leave is not payable in the event of employee termination), is
considered a contingent liability, and is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

Unearned Revenue / Advances from Participants

Unearned revenue and advances from participants represent grant and agency revenues received in
advance of the recognition of the related expense.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California
Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to and deductions from the plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the  District’s
OPEB Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for
money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a maturity at
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(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that could affect certain
reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.  Also, the preparation of the financial statements inherently requires rounding of amounts
and estimates. Management believes that any differences due to rounding are not material.

Prior Year Data

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements.
This information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete
presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.    Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the District’s prior year financial statements, from which this selected
financial data was derived.

(2) Cash and Investments

Cash and investments at June 30, 2023, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of net position: 

Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) $    365,110 
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) 6,740,899 
Investments (restricted) 1,120,665 
Investments (unrestricted) 2,875,886 

Total Cash and Investments $ 11,102,560 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2023 consist of the following: 

Cash on hand $  500 
Deposits with financial institutions 131,061
Investments 10,970,999

Total Cash and Investments    $      11,102,560 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's Investment 
Policy 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California 
Government Code (or the District's investment policy).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code (or the District's investment policy) that address interest rate risk and 
concentration of credit risk. The District’s investment policy allows for funds to be divided into two 
categories. The Operating Fund authorized investments are below: 
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued)

Maximum 
Authorized Investment Type Maturity 

Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio 

Maximum 
Investment 

in One 

U.S. Treasuries  5 years 100% 100% 
U.S. Government Agencies 5 years 100%  50% 
Corporate Securities 5 years 30%   10% 
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10% 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30%   5% 
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 5% 
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 20%  10% 
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 20% 
Collective Investment Pool N/A 20% 10% 
County Investment Pool N/A 100% 100% 
State Investment Pool N/A 100% 100% 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that a change in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair market value 
of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair market value to changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the District manages its 
exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter-term and longer-term investments 
and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to 
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair market values of the District's investments to market interest 
rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by 
maturity: 

12 Months 13 to 24 25-60
Investment Type Total or Less Months Months

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 1,578,107$   499,133$      483,065$      595,909$      
Corporate Securities 1,073,835     - - 1,073,835     
US Government Issues 223,945       - - 223,945       
Orange County Treasurer's Pool 4,075,235     4,075,235     - - 
State Investment Pool 2,899,213     2,899,213     - - 
PARS Section 115 Trust 1,120,664     1,120,664     - - 

10,970,999$ 8,594,245$   483,065$      1,893,689$   

Remaining Maturity (in Months)
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rat ing
organizat ion. Presented below is  t he  min imum rat ing requi red by (where applicable) the
California Government Code or District's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating by
Standard and Poor’s (S&P) as of the year end of each investment type.  The District purchases all
investments at the minimum rating but some investments’ ratings may downgrade during its life but it is
the District’s policy to hold investments until their maturity.

** Investments conformed to District’s Investment Policy at time of acquisition 

Disclosures Relating to Fair Value Measurement and Application 

Investments categorized as Level 2 are valued using a market approach using quoted market prices. 
Values are determined using pricing models and discounted cash flow models and includes management 
judgement and estimation. Uncategorized investments are not subject to fair value categorization.  

The District had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2023: 

Investment Type Total
Minimum

Rating AA+ A A-** Not Rated

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 1,578,107$   N/A -$ -$ -$ 1,578,107$ 
Corporate Securities 1,073,835 A - 443,320 630,515   -  
US Government Issues 223,945  A 223,945   -  -   -  
Orange County Treasurer's Pool 4,075,235 N/A -   -  -   4,075,235   
State Investment Pool 2,899,213 N/A -   -  -   2,899,213   
PARS Section 115 Trust 1,120,664 N/A -   -  -   1,120,664   

10,970,999$ 223,945$ 443,320$ 630,515$ 9,673,219$ 

Ratings as of Year End

Investment Type Total 1 2 3 Uncategorized

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 1,578,107$   -$             1,578,107$ -$  -$  
Corporate Securities 1,073,835     - 1,073,835 - - 
US Government Issues 223,945       - 223,945 - - 
Orange County Treasurer's Pool 4,075,235     - - - 4,075,235       
State Investment Pool 2,899,213     - - - 2,899,213       
PARS Section 115 Trust 1,120,664     - - - 1,120,664       

10,970,999$ -$             2,875,887$ -$  8,095,112$     

Fair Value Application
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
as stipulated by the California Government Code. At June 30, 2023, the District did not have investments
in more than one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, external investment
pools) that represented 5% or more of total District investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.   The custodial credit risk for investments is
the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a
government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of another party.  The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do
not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or
investments, other than the following provision for deposits.

The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or
local  governmental units  by  pledging  securities  in  an  undivided  collateral  pool  held  by  a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).   The market value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the
public agency.  The Government Code also allows financial institutions to secure public agency deposits
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.  As of
June 30, 2023, the District’s deposits with financial institutions are covered by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to $250,000, the remaining amounts of $989,866 were collateralized as
described above.

Investment in Public Agency Retirement Services

The District is a voluntary participant in Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) with US Bank as our
trustee and HighMark Capital Management as our investment manager. The plan administrator is the
District’s General Manager. The District has a Section 115 Irrevocable Exclusive Benefit Trust for pension
and OPEB to supplement our liabilities. Govt Code Section 53216.6 and 53620 govern plan investments
within the Trust. Our current investment strategy is Moderate HighMark PLUS in a pooled account. The
OPEB Plan was established July 2011 and Pension was February 2018. Only the Pension plan is reported
as Restricted Investments in these financial statements. Once contributions are placed into the PARS
Trust, assets from the Trust can only be used for specific benefit pan purposes.

Investment in State and County Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in LAIF that is regulated by California Government Code Section
16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California, and in the OCTP under the oversight
of the Orange County Treasurer.  The fair market value of the District's investment in these pools is
reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share
of the fair market value provided by LAIF and OCTP for the entire LAIF and OCTP portfolios (in relation
to the amortized cost of that portfolio).    The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by LAIF and OCTP, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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(2) Cash and Investments (Continued)

LAIF is a governmental investment pool managed and directed by the California State Treasurer and is
not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. An oversight committee comprised o f
California  State  officials  and  various  participants  provides  oversight  to  the management of the
fund.  The daily operations and responsibilities of LAIF fall under the auspices of the State Treasurer's
office.

The OCTP is an external investment pool, is not rated and is not registered with the Securities
Exchange Commission (SEC). The County Treasury Oversight Committee conducts OCTP oversight.
Cash on deposit in OCTP at June 30, 2023, is stated at fair value. The OCTP values participant shares on
an amortized cost basis during the year and adjusts to fair value at year-end.

For further information regarding OCTP, refer to the County of Orange Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report.

(3) Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are monies held in restricted funds or accounts by the District for the benefit of member
agencies and the District’s specific benefit plan purposes. As of June 30, 2023, $1,485,775 was reported as
restricted assets which includes the District’s PARS Section 115 Trust and member agency activities as
shown in Note 2.

(4) Capital Assets

The following is a summary of capital assets at June 30, 2023 with changes therein:

(5) Deferred Pension Plan

The District sponsors a Money Purchase Pension Plan (the Pension Plan), a defined contribution plan, under
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). Currently the MWDOC Board of Directors, MWDOC MET Directors
and the General Manager participate in the Pension Plan. In accordance with section 3401(c) of the Internal
Revenue Code, the term employee includes officers, whether elected or appointed. The Directors contribute
7.5 percent of their covered compensation to the Pension Plan, in lieu of contributing to Social Security. The
Directors’ contributions to the Pension Plan totaled $40,531 for the year ended June 30, 2023.  Participants
become vested in the Pension Plan at a rate of 20% per year of service until they are fully vested after five
(5) years. District employees were previously part of the Pension Plan until March 2003 when they became
members of the CalPERS plan. See Note 7.

2022 Additions Deletions 2023

Furniture,Fixtures and Equipment 885,095$    54,376$      (25,521)$ 913,950$     
Leasehold Improvements 7,001,518   9,673         - 7,011,191

7,886,613   64,049       (25,521)   7,925,141    
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Furniture,Fixtures and Equipment (536,405)     (102,493)    25,521    (613,377)      
Leasehold Improvements (3,209,031)  (225,395)    - (3,434,426)

(3,745,436)  (327,888)    25,521    (4,047,803)   
Net Capital Assets 4,141,177$ (263,839)$   -$           3,877,338$  
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(6) Risk Management

The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority
(JPIA) (Insurance Authority).  The Insurance Authority is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created
under provisions of California Government Code Sections 6500 et. seq. The purpose of the Insurance
Authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses and to
purchase excess insurance coverage for participating member agencies.

The Insurance Authority bills the District a deposit premium at the beginning of each year, which is placed
in a reserve fund to cover the self-insurance portion of any claim.  Settlements and/or expenses related to
claims during the year are then charged to the reserve.  If the balance of the reserve at the end of the year
is deemed too low in relation to the amount of outstanding claims, the District is billed for additional
premiums.  When the claims are fully settled, any amounts remaining in the reserve are refunded to the
District.

At June 30, 2023, the District participated in the self-insurance programs as follows:

Property Program - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per occurrence and
has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $500 million.  The District has a $1,000 deductible for
buildings, personal property and fixed equipment and $500 for licensed vehicles/trailers.

General, Auto and Public Officials Liability - The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $5
million per occurrence and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $55 million per occurrence.

Crime and Excess Crime Program - The Insurance Authority has a total coverage limit of $3 million, per loss.
The District has a $1,000 deductible and coverage in excess has a $100,000 deductible.

Cyber Liability – The Insurance Authority has a coverage limit of $5 million aggregate with a $75,000 to
$100,000 deductible.

Workers’ Compensation Program – The District is a member of the Special District Risk Management
Authority (SDRMA) and participates in its Workers’ Compensation Program for special districts and other
public agencies. The SDRMA provides responsive claims management, cost containment, combined with
tailored safety and loss prevention and an unequaled full-service workers’ compensation program. All claims
are handled by a third-party administrator, Sedgwick.  Comprehensive Coverage includes Statutory Workers’
Compensation Limits, $5 million Employer’s Liability, Zero Member Deductible, and SDRMA maintains a
Self-Insured Retention that is periodically adjusted based on market conditions.

The District pays annual premiums for all policy coverages and to date does not have any active/open claims
or pending settlements.
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(7) Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Plan

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Descriptions – Effective March 1, 2003, all qualified regular full-time employees working over 1,000
hours in a fiscal year are eligible to participate in the District’s employee pension plan, a cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The CalPERS Plans (the Plans)
consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (referred to as “risk pools”), which are comprised of
individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate plans, respectively. The risk pools are included within the
Public Employees’ Retirement Funds C (PERF C). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established and
may be amended by State statute and the District’s resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports
that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, membership
information, and related financial information can be found on the CalPERS website at:
http://www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based
on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment.  Members with five years (5) of total
service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit,
the 1959 Survivor Benefit or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost-of-living adjustments for
each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous 

Prior to On or after 

Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 

Formula         2.0% @55 2.0% @62 

Benefit vesting schedule   5 years of service 5 years of service 

Benefit payments       monthly for life monthly for life 

Retirement age 50-63 52-67

Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5% 

Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.75% 

Required employer contribution rates 10.87% 7.47% 
Pensionable Compensation Cap* $330,000      $175,250 

 Will increase to reflect changes in the Consumer Price Index 

Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in rate. Funding contributions for  Plans  are 
determined annually  on  an  actuarial  basis  as  of  June  30  by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate 
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, 
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the 
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rates of employees. 

Contributions recognized by the Plans from the employer for the year ended June 30, 2023, were $654,493. 
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(7) Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Plan (Continued) 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

 
As of June 30, 2023, the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan is as follows: 
 

  
 

The District’s net pension liability was measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability of the 
collective cost-sharing plan.  The District’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the 
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures. The 
District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined.  The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 
30, 2022 and 2023 were as follows: 

  
 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $1,107,582.   
 
At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
 

Net Position Liability

Balance at: December 31, 2021 1,097,925$                    
Balance at: December 31, 2022 3,612,624                      
Net change during 2022 2,514,699$                    

Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2022 0.05782%
Proportion - June 30, 2023 0.07721%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.01939%

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between Expected and Actual
   Experience 72,549$                  48,590$           
Changes of Assumptions 370,189                  -                  
Differences between Projected and Actual
   Investment Earnings 661,737                  -                  
Change in Employer's Proportion 391,426                  -                  
Differences between Employers Contributions
   and Proportionate Share of Contributions -                          226,402           
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent to
   Measurement Date 654,493                  -                  

Total 2,150,394$             274,992$         
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(7) Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

The amount of $654,493 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in fiscal year ending June
30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation with update 
procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2022, was based on the following 
actuarial assumptions: 

Miscellaneous 

Valuation Date June 30, 2021 
Measurement Date June 30, 2022 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Investment Rate of Return 6.90% 
Inflation 2.30%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 

Mortality Rate Table1 Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds   
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.30% until Purchasing Power 

Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power 
applies

1 The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The rates incorporate Generational 
Mortality to capture ongoing mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP 2020 published by the 
Society of Actuaries. For more details refer to the 2021 experience study report on the CalPERS 
website. 

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made 
at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily 
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Miscellaneous
2024 340,369$                  
2025 303,381       
2026 172,418       
2027 404,741       

1,220,909$               
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(7) Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return - In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took
into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.
Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated and combined with risk estimates, are used to project
compound (geometric) returns over the long term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed
by the long-term projected portfolio return.

The table below reflects the expected real rates of return by asset class.

1 An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period. 
2 Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management study

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current rate. 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

Assumed Asset Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-101,2

Global Equity - cap-weighted 30.00% 4.45%
Global Equity - non-cap-weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.00% 1.56%
Fixed Income 5.00% 2.27%
Inflation Assets 5.00% 2.48%
Private Equity 5.00% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.00% 3.21%
Liquidity -5.00% -0.59%

Total 100.00%

1%  Decrease 
(5.90%)

Discount Rate 
(6.90%)

1%  Increase   
(7.90%)

District's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 6,143,646$      3,612,624$    1,530,222$       
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(7) Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are
recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

(8) Retiree Medical Plan – Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description:

Effective October 1, 2011, the District established a Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan (Health Plan) and has
contributed to a Section 115 Irrevocable Exclusive Benefit Trust for the pre-funding of post-employment
health care costs. Currently, the District provides health benefits for employees, retirees, and their
dependents with a choice of medical plans through the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA)
Joint Powers Insurance Authority. Employees and retirees select from the same plans. Retired employees
(hired prior to July 1, 2012) who are at least 55 years of age are eligible for these health and welfare benefits
based on their years of full-time accrued service. There are two benefit tiers for the years of accrued service:

Tier 1: Employees retiring with a minimum of 10 consecutive years of full-time service with the District, earn
medical coverage on the following terms: The District will pay for Retiree only or couples coverage on the
same basis as active employees. Retiree and spouse/domestic partner have the option to continue dental
and vision benefits at their own cost and COBRA coverage is offered. Upon becoming Medicare eligible, the
retiree must enroll and transition to Medicare coverage. The District will reimburse retiree only up to the
annual cap of $3,080.82 for a Medicare Advantage Plan, a supplemental Medigap insurance policy,
Medicare Prescription Drug Insurance or Medicare Part B coverage. If a spouse or domestic partner survives
a retiree, their coverage will continue until remarriage, enrollment in another plan or becoming Medicare
eligible.

Tier 2: Employees retiring with a minimum of 25 consecutive years of full-time service with the District earn
medical, dental and vision benefits on the following terms: The District will pay for retiree only or couples
coverage on the same basis as active employees. The District pays the following for dental and vision
coverage: Dental for retiree only 90%; couples coverage 80%. Vision coverage for retiree only 100%;
couples coverage 80%. Retirees and their spouses/domestic partner are required to enroll in Medicare Parts
A and B upon eligibility. The District will reimburse for Medicare Part B for both retiree and their eligible

Net Difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

All other amounts

5 year straight-line amortization

Straight-line amortization over the expected average 
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all members that 
are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) 
as of the beginning of the measurement period
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(8) Retiree Medical Plan – Other-Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

spouse/domestic partner. If a spouse or domestic partner survives a retiree, their coverage will continue until
remarriage or enrollment in another plan.

The following guidelines apply to both tiers:

1. The District does not make contributions to Health Savings Accounts on behalf of retirees.
2. Reenrollment is not permitted if a retiree discontinues medical coverage.
3. Annual open enrollment is not permitted for retirees.
4. Reimbursement requires proper verification and is made on a quarterly to yearly basis.

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2012 are ineligible for District-paid retiree health benefits. Plan benefits 
and contribution requirements of Health Plan members and the District are established, and may be 
amended, by the District’s Board of Directors. 

The following parties are responsible for administration of the Health Plan: 

 Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) serves as Trust Administrator and Consultant
 US Bank serves as Trustee, and
 HighMark Capital Management (HighMark) serves as Investment Manager

PARS issues monthly account reports to the District and HighMark publishes quarterly performance reports. 

Plan membership at June 30, 2022, membership consisted of the following: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 13 
Active plan members 9 

Total 22 

Funding Policy: 

The contribution requirements of Health Plan members and the District are established, and may be 
amended, by the District’s Board of Directors. The District has fully funded the OPEB obligation with the 
addition of an OPEB Designated Reserve account.  

Net OPEB Liability/(Asset): 

The District’s Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) was measured as of June 30, 2022 and the Total OPEB 
Liability/(Asset) used to calculate the Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July 1, 2022 (June 30, 2022). Standard actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount 
from valuation to measurement dates. 
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(8) Retiree Medical Plan – Other-Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

Actuarial assumptions:

The total OPEB liability/(asset) was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age, Level Percent of Pay 
Valuation of fiduciary net position Fair value of assets 
Recognition of deferred inflows and
outflows of resources 

Closed period equal to the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees provided with OPEB 

Salary increases 3.00 percent 
Inflation rate 3.00 percent 
Investment rate of return 6.00 percent, net of OPEB plan investment expense 
Healthcare cost trend rate 6.00 percent for 2023, 5.50 percent for 2024, 5.30 percent for 

2025-2030, 5.50 percent for 2031-2040, 5.20 percent for 
2041-2050, 5.10 for 2051-2060, 5.00 percent for 2061-2069, 
and 4.50 percent for 2070 and later years; Medicare ages: 
4.50 percent for all years. 

Preretirement Mortality Preretirement Mortality Rates from CalPERS Experience 
Study (2000-2019). 

Postretirement Mortality Post-retirement Mortality Rates for Healthy Recipients from 
CalPERS Experience Study (2000-2019). 

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during 
the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2022. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The calculated investment rate of return was set equal 
to the expected ten-year compound (geometric) real return plus inflation (rounded to the nearest 25 basis 
points, where appropriate). The table below provides the long-term expected real rates of return by asset 
class (based on published capital market assumptions). 

 Discount rate: 

 GASB 75 requires a discount rate that reflects the following: 

a) The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments – to the extent that the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position (if any) is projected to be enough to make projected benefit payments
and assets are expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve that return.

b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher – to the extent that the conditions in (a) are not met.

Asset Class Assumed Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return
Broad U.S. Equity 50% 4.4%

U.S. Fixed 50% 1.8%
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(8) Retiree Medical Plan – Other-Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

To determine a resulting single (blended) rate, the amount of the plan’s projected fiduciary net position (if
any) and the amount of projected benefit payments is compared in each period of projected benefit
payments. The discount rate used to measure the District’s total OPEB liability/(asset) is based on these
requirements and the following information:

The components of the net OPEB liability/(asset) at June 30, 2023, were as follows: 

Total OPEB liability    $2,371,670 
Plan fiduciary net position 2,574,618
Net OPEB liability (asset) (202,948) 
Measurement date June 30, 2023 
Reporting date June 30, 2023 
Covered employee payroll    $1,379,093 
Net OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of covered payroll -14.72%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB 
liability 

108.56% 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) (June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023): 

Reporting Date Measurement Date
Long-Term Expected 

Return of Plan 
Investments

Fidelity GO AA 
20-Year 

Municipal Index
Discount Rate

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2022 6.00% 3.69% 6.00%
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023 6.00% 3.86% 6.00%

Total OPEB
Liability

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

Net OPEB
Liability/(Asset)

Balances at June 30, 2022 2,304,315$ 2,408,599$   (104,284)$       

Changes for the year:
Service Cost 17,857        - 17,857 
Interest 136,751      - 136,751 
Differences between expected and actual experience - -
Change in assumptions - -
Net investment income - 180,315 (180,315)         
Contributions

Employer - cash subsidy - 87,253 (87,253)           
Benefit payments, including implicit subsidy (87,253)       (87,253) - 
Administrative expense - (14,296) 14,296            

Net changes 67,355        166,019        (98,664)           
Balances at June 30, 2023 2,371,670$ 2,574,618$   (202,948)$       

Increase (Decrease)
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(8) Retiree Medical Plan – Other-Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate:

The following presents the net OPEB liability/(asset), as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than
the current discount rate:

1% Decrease 
(5.00%) 

Discount Rate 
(6.00%) 

1% Increase 
(7.00%) 

Net OPEB liability (asset) $84,429 $(202,948) $(441,650)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates: 

The following presents the net OPEB liability/(asset), as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be 
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-
point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease2 Trend Rate 1% Increase3 

Net OPEB liability (asset) ($436,002) ($202,948) $79,435

2 Trend rate for each future year reduced by 1%  
3 Trend rate for each future year increased by 1% 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District made a total contribution of $77,918, which represents actual 
health care costs for its retirees and their covered dependents. Total contribution inclusive of implicit subsidy 
amounted to $87,253.  

 At June 30, 2023, the District’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources are: 

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 163,277$    -$  
Differences between expected and actual experience - 158,066 
Changes in assumptions 40,211  - 
Total 203,488$    158,066$    
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(8) Retiree Medical Plan – Other-Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

 Investments 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of 
investment expense, was 7.51%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, 
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts invested. 

The District’s policy regarding the allocation of the plan’s invested assets is established and may be 
amended by the District’s management and Board of Directors. The current investment selection is the 
Moderate HighMark PLUS. The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It 
is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a significant portion of total return, although 
growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity and 
fixed income investments. 

(9) Commitments and Contingencies

The District is involved in various litigation from time to time arising from the normal course of business.   In
the opinion of management and legal counsel, the District is not involved in any litigation that is expected
to have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2023.

(10) Subsequent Events

The District’s Board of Directors approved a revision to the Reserve Policy consolidating the reserve funds
and reducing the level from 180 to 120 Days Cash. The total reduction of $1.9M was allocated as follows:

 $500,000 credit to our Member Agencies on their annual Retail Meter and Groundwater customer
charge invoices, billed in July 2023.

 $1 Million to our unfunded pension liability
 Approx $400,000 to WEROC’s Mobile Emergency Operating Center

Fiscal Year ending June 30:
Deferred Outflows

of Resources
2024 (77,020)$             
2025 29,057 
2026 100,631 
2027 (7,246) 

45,422$  

Asset Class Strategic Asset Allocation Ranges

Equity 40-60%
Fixed income 40-60%
Cash 0-20%
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Budgeted (Y/N): Y  Budgeted amount:  $50,000 Core X Choice __ 

Action item amount:  50,000 Line item:  32-7040 

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):   
 

  Item No. 3 
 

 
 

ACTION ITEM 
December 20, 2023 

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Dick, Thomas, Crane) 
 
 Harvey De La Torre    Staff Contact: Damon Micalizzi & 
 General Manager      Tiffany Baca 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to Contract with LA Design Studio For Website Updates   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board of Directors authorize entering into a contract with LA Design 
Studio to provide enhancements and updates for the Municipal Water District of Orange 
County’s website. 
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
The committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
It has been six years since MWDOC’s redesigned website launched. A site that has won 
numerous awards for digital media, web development, and branding excellence in the public 
sector. L.A. Design Studio is the firm that initially built the new mwdoc.com and has 
provided back-end support since its launch.  Regular updates and improvements are 
necessary to maintain the website's relevance, interactivity, and ease of use for its users.   
 
The District solicited proposals and received quotes from several qualified firms. After 
careful review, MWDOC staff determined that L.A. Design Studio, the original architect, was 
best equipped to update the district's website efficiently and expeditiously. This 
recommendation was taken to the Executive Committee in November. After a thorough 
discussion, the Committee recommended that the District opt for a sole source contract with 
L.A. Design Studio in lieu of a formal RFP process. This recommendation was made due to 
the nature of the contract and the fact that the same Consultant had already completed 
proprietary work in the prior phase of professional services. 
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Based on a review of proposals from three firms, the consultant’s previously demonstrated 
success, the proprietary nature of the work, a highly competitive pricing structure, and the 
recommendation of the Executive Committee, staff recommends that the Board of Directors 
authorize entering into a contract with L.A. Design Studio to provide enhancements and 
updates for the Municipal Water District of Orange County’s website. 
 
BOARD OPTIONS 
 
Option #1 

• Approve a contract with L.A. Design Studio to provide website updates and 
enhancements not to exceed $50,000. 

• Business Analysis: Continuity of business with a consultant who presently has access 
and experience with MWDOC’s brand and needs. 

• Fiscal Impact $50,000.  ($50,000 currently budgeted FY 22/23)  
 

Option #2 
• Take no action and direct staff to perform a formal RFP process.  
• Business Analysis:  The website updates would be delayed for months.  
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Budgeted (Y/N):  N/A Budgeted amount:  N/A Core __ Choice __ 

Action item amount:    

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted): Not applicable 

 

Item No. 4 
  

 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION ITEM 
December 13, 2023 

 
 

TO: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Dick, Thomas, Crane) 
 
FROM: Harvey De La Torre, General Manager 
 
 Staff Contact: Hilary Chumpitazi 
 
SUBJECT: FYE 2024-25 Budget 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Administration & Finance Committee review the budget 
schedule and preliminary budget assumptions, discuss activities and/or projects they would 
like added or deleted from the budget, and direct the General Manager as appropriate.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
Committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The General Manager notified the MWDOC Member Agencies in November of the initiation 
of the budget process. The notification included this year’s budget schedule (attached) and  
invited the member agencies to provide their initial budget suggestions and actively 
participate in the process. Staff has subsequently initiated the program/project planning and 
line-item budget process. The initial review of budget issues with the A&F Committee is 
scheduled for January 10, 2024, with the review of the first draft budget at the February 14 
A&F meeting. Approval of the final budget is scheduled for the April 17, 2024 Board of 
Directors meeting.  
 
Preliminary key budget assumptions/changes for FYE 2024-25: 

• A review of the District’s projected reserves accounts and targets for the coming 
year.  

• Evaluation of adding a part-time accountant to the Finance Department as result of 
increased WUE activities and shared service programs. 
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• Outline a budget and identify the resources needed to initiate a MWDOC 
“Ambassador program” in FY 2024-25.    

• The working assumption for the compensation merit pool will be based on the 10-
month (Jan.- Oct. 2023) CPI-U average for LA/Riverside/Anaheim area of 
3.57%. Based on our formula for the Compensation Pool, a 3.57% CPI is in the 
moderate range. Therefore, the budget will utilize the moderate inflation category 
formula of CPI + 1.85%, or 6.6%. This number will be updated once the final 12- 
month CPI average is available in Mid-January along with survey information from 
our other agencies. 

• As past practice, staff will present any proposed budgetary additions to the A&F 
Committee for discussion and agreement before such expenses are included in the 
proposed budget numbers. 

 
An important component of the budget process is the early input from the MWDOC 
Directors as to the policy and program modifications they believe should be included in the 
budget. This meeting is the appropriate time for that input and direction to staff.  
 
Attachment: FYE 2024-25 Budget Schedule 
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Item 4 

1 | P a g e  
 

FY 2024-25 BUDGET SCHEDULE 

 
November 2023 

• Notification to Member Agencies of start of budget process and 
solicitation of input 

 
December 2023 

• MWDOC staff begins preparation of budget hours and costs on 
program and line-item basis 

• Review of four-month actuals and fiscal year-end projections 
• Review budget adjustments for current fiscal year 
• Preparation of internal, draft conceptual budget (review changes 

for upcoming fiscal year 
 
January 2024 
• Initial review of budget issues with A&F Committee for feedback 

(1-10-24) 
• Initial discussion of budget issues with Member Agencies for 

feedback 
• Request for Member Agencies’ preliminary indication of 

participation in Choice 
 

February 2024 
• Publish and post the FIRST DRAFT Budget in the packet for the 

A&F Committee (2-9-24) 
• Review First Draft Budget with A&F Committee (2-14-24) 
• Formally request comments from all Member Agencies 
• DRAFT information completed on prior year Choice WUE 

program benefits to Member Agencies to serve as basis for 
charging agencies for the upcoming year for Choice WUE 
activities 

• Member Agencies’ INITIAL CONFIRMATION of participation in 
Choice Services by February 20. The Updated Agreement by 
the end of March or after the Elected Officials Meeting 

• Discuss FIRST DRAFT Budget at Member Agency Managers’ 
Meeting (2-22-24) 

• Meet with Member Agencies as requested or scheduled 
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Item 4 

2 | P a g e  
 

FY 2024-25 BUDGET SCHEDULE 

 
March 2024 

• Revised information completed on prior year Choice WUE 
benefits to Member Agencies to serve as basis of charging 
agencies for the upcoming year for WUE activities 

• Discuss SECOND DRAFT Budget in A&F Committee (3-13-24) 
• Review SECOND DRAFT Budget at Member Agency 

Managers’ Meeting (3-21-24)  
• Update Choice Participation 
• Member Agencies submit Formal Comments on the Budget  

(3-29-24) 
 
April 2024 

• Conduct meeting with Elected Officials from Member Agencies 
to discuss budget and other topics 

• THIRD DRAFT Budget and Rates presented to A&F Committee 
(4-10-24) 

• Member Agencies’ Formal Comments presented to A&F 
Committee (4-10-24) 

• Board approval of FY2023-24 FINAL Budget and Rates 
(4-17-24) 
 

June 2024 
• Member Agencies confirm final Choice Participation (6-14-24) 

 
August 2024 

• Reconciliation of FY 2023-24 WUE & Choice Programs 
 

September 2024 
• REVISED FINAL Choice Budget presented to A&F Committee 

(9-11-24) 
• Board approval of FY2024-25 REVISED FINAL Choice Budget 

(9-18-24) 
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Item 5a

1 

Administration Activities Report 

 November 3, 2023 – December 7, 2023 

Activity Summary

Administration/ 
Board 

Administration team worked on the following: 
 Scheduled meetings for Harvey De La Torre and Board members

(including Special meetings and Ad Hoc meetings).
 Assisted Harvey with various write-ups and follow-up for the

Committees and Board.
 Continue to send the Water Supply Reports to the member agencies.
 Processed and reviewed agreements for appropriate Board approval

and insurance requirements as well as execution following approval.
 Responded to two Public Records Act requests.
 Made various updates/changes to the website including WACO items,

District calendar, Transparency items, etc.; worked with Public Affairs
on technical issues with the website.

 Held discussion with a representative from Granicus regarding Form
700 software capabilities.

 Prepared and sent various letters on behalf of President Yoo
Schneider supporting member agency projects.

 MET with legal counsel regarding Administrative Code language.
 Worked with MET staff on MWDOC’s meeting calendar.
 Solicited availability and scheduled in-person and Zoom meetings for

the Interim GM, Director of MET Issues & Policy, Engineering
Department, and staff.

 Registered Staff and Directors for various conferences, training, made
travel accommodations, and processed business expenses.

 Prepared agreements, followed up on insurance forms, solicited
signatures and created requisitions for Interim GM, Director of
Engineering, and Principal Engineer.

 Formatted letters for the Director of Government Affairs and the
Engineering Department.

 Assisted with hosting ISDOC Meeting
 Assisted with preparations for the in-person ISDOC Quarterly Luncheon

on January 25, 2024

Records 
Management 

 Provided Records Management training for new staff member.
 Continued to review incoming mail and log necessary documents into

the Laserfiche system.
 Staff continues to review documents and update information in

Laserfiche.
Health and 
Welfare Benefits  

 Open enrollment 2024 has been closed.

Recruitment / 
Departures 

 Recruitment efforts for the WEROC Specialist will be restarted in
January.
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 Item 5a 

2 

 Interviews are being scheduled for the new Water Loss Control 
Program Intern.   

Projects/ 
Activities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Administration Team worked on the following:  
 Assisted with WACO on Meetings via Zoom, PowerPoint 

presentations, preparing for hybrid meetings, various correspondence 
and note taking. Coordinating with WACO president and speakers.  

 Attended Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, as well as 
preparation for these meetings, including packet preparation, meeting 
setup/take-down, Zoom coordination, etc. 

 Assist Finance Department with filing, processing of invoices, purchase 
requisitions, business expense reports and credit card reconciliations.   

 HR has started reviewing job descriptions with the consultant as part of 
the Classification and Compensation Study.   

 HR Responded to inquiries pertaining to open enrollment, retiree 
health benefits, and other health and welfare benefits from active 
employees as well as retirees. 

 Staff continues to research new vendors and pricing on MWDOC Logo 
Apparel.   

 HR is coordinating the January HR OC Water agency work group 
meeting.  

 HR Coordinated and participated in interviews for the WEROC 
Specialist position.   

 HR continues working with Anne Sandberg of Predict Success to 
schedule Executive team Assessments, team building and training 
exercises.     

 Working on the 2024 Orange County Cities and Water Agencies 
Directory.  

 An in person All Employee Meeting was held on November 16th.    
 HR is reviewing items and vendors in putting together a new hire 

welcome kit.   
 Obtaining quotes for name plates for offices and workstations.   
 Attended ACWA/JPIA Webinar regarding Illness Injury Prevention 

Program.    
 HR completed GM Salary Survey consisting of MWDOC and MET 

Member Agency Water Districts.   
 HR coordinated with District Counsel on GM Contract.     
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Item No. 5b 
 
 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
December 13, 2023 

 
TO: Administration & Finance Committee 
 (Directors Dick, Thomas, Crane) 
 
FROM: Harvey De La Torre, General Manager  
 Staff Contact:  Steven Hung 
 
SUBJECT: Finance and IT Pending Items Report 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The following list details the status of special projects in progress or to be completed during 
this Fiscal Year. 
 
Finance  
 

Accounting 
Rebate Program(s) 

W-9 collection for conservation rebates. Currently 
holding 1 rebate check(s) awaiting W-9 form(s). 

Audit FY22/23 audit is 99% complete 
Other RFP for Custodial Services 

 
Finance 

Cyber Security 
Training (Knowbe4) 

For this Quarter, training completion by all MWDOC  
Staff (and Directors) is 64% complete 

Budget The FY24/25 Budget is 10% complete 
 
Information Technology (IT) 
 

Hardware 

Redundant 
Internet 

Installation and configuration completed; final 
implementation scheduled for first week of 
December 

Routers/Switches 
Project initiated to gather vendor proposals to 
replace aging network routers and switches 

Surplus 
Hardware 

Surplus desktop devices and printers from EOC 
recycled with certified on-site destruction of all 
data devices 

Phones 
Beginning research on Voice over IP (VoIP) 
phone systems, features, and assessing 
potential benefits to the District  

Software 
Customer 
Database 

Project to manage member agency contact 
information into Microsoft 365 is complete; data 
validation will continue in the coming weeks 
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Security 
Reports 

Efforts continue to review cyber best practices 
and recommendations from prior assessments. 

Vulnerability 
Scanning 

Weekly DHS vulnerability scans report no 
identified vulnerabilities  

Service 
Device 

Provisioning 

Three laptops provisioned and readied for staff; 
we continue to consolidate devices to docking 
stations where possible 

Training/ 
Development 

Artificial 
Intelligence 

Staff presented an introduction to Artificial 
Intelligence (AI), ChatGPT, and associated 
benefits, drawbacks, and risks, at all-hands 
meeting. 
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Budgeted (Y/N):  N Budgeted amount:  N/A Core  X Choice __ 

Action item amount:  N/A Line item:   

Fiscal Impact (explain if unbudgeted):  

Item No.  

INFORMATION ITEM 
December 13, 2023 

TO: Administration & Finance Committee 
(Directors Crane, Dick, Thomas) 

FROM: Harvey De La Torre, Interim General Manager 

Staff Contact: Kevin Hostert 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Usage Data and Water Supply Info. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Administration & Finance Committee receive and file this information. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

Committee recommends (To be determined at Committee Meeting) 

REPORT 

The attached figures show the recent trend of water consumption in Orange County (OC), 
an estimate of Imported Water Sales for MWDOC, and selected water supply information.   

 OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply   OCWD Groundwater was the main supply
in October.    

 Estimated OC Water Usage, Monthly, Comparison to Previous Years    Water usage
in October 2023 was below average compared to the last 5 years.  We are
projecting an increase in overall water usage compared to FY 2022-23.  On March
24th 2023, state officials eased back drought emergency provisions that were in
place since July 2021.

 Historical OC Water Consumption Orange County M & I projected water
consumption is 518,500 AF for FY 2023-24 (this includes ~7 TAF of agricultural
usage and non-retail water agency usage). This is about 38,500 AF more than FY
2022-23 and is about 27,500 AF less than FY 2021-22. Water usage per person is
projected to be slightly lower in FY 2022-23 for Orange County at 147 gallons per
day (This includes recycled water usage).  Although OC population has increased
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20% over the past two decades, water usage has not increased, on average.   A 
long-term decrease in per-capita water usage is attributed mostly to Water Use 
Efficiency (water conservation) efforts.  O.C. Water Usage has declined 
significantly since the end of FY 2013-14.  Since FY 2013-14 average O.C. 
Annual Water usage is 528,500 AF, a decline of 93,000 AF since FY 2013-14.  
FY 2022-23 Orange County M & I water consumption was the lowest since FY 
1978-79 (44 Years). 

 
Water Supply Information Includes data on Rainfall in OC; the OCWD Basin overdraft; 
Northern California and Colorado River Basin hydrologic data; the State Water Project 
(SWP) Allocation, and regional storage volumes.  The data have implications for the 
magnitude of supplies from the three watersheds that are the principal sources of water for 
OC.  Note that a hydrologic year is Oct. 1st through Sept. 30th. 
 

 Orange County’s accumulated precipitation through early December was below 
average for this period.  Water year to date rainfall in Orange County is 0.5 inches, 
which is 23% of normal.  

  
 Northern California accumulated precipitation through early December was 19% of 

normal for this period. Water Year 2023 was 133% of normal while water year 
2022 was 48% of normal. The Northern California snowpack was 215% of 
normal as of April 9th, 2023. As of late November, 0.00% of California is 
experiencing moderate drought conditions. 0.0% of California is experiencing 
severe to exceptional drought conditions. The State Water Project Contractors 
Table A Allocation was increased to 100% as of April for WY 2023.  
 

 Colorado River Basin accumulated precipitation through early December was 88% 
of normal for this period.  The Upper Colorado Basin snowpack was 60.5% of 
normal as of April 10th 2023. Lake Mead and Lake Powell combined have about 
53.0% of their average storage volume for this time of year and are at 34.7% of 
their total capacity. Lake Mead’s levels have been below the “trigger” limit of 
1,075 ft. since the start of CY 2022.  The US Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) has 
declared a shortage at Lake Mead, impacting Colorado River water deliveries to the 
Lower Basin states. Lake Mead as of early December was 9.62’ BELOW the 
“trigger” limit.  The USBR has declared a shortage on the Colorado River that 
started on January 1st 2022.  There is a 100% chance of shortage continuing in 
2024, 93% in 2025 and 77% in 2026. Lake Mead as of early December was 20.38’ 
ABOVE the State of California “trigger” limit.  There is a 0% chance of 
mandatory cutbacks for California in 2024, 0% in 2025 and 20% in 2026.  
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